
Democratic Services 
 
 

 

 

 
 

COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
(SPECIAL MEETING) 

 
Tuesday 17 June 2025 at 7.00 pm 

 
Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall 

 
Online access to this meeting is available on YouTube: Link to online broadcast 

 
The members listed below are summoned to attend the Community and Wellbeing 
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business 
set out in this agenda. 
 

Councillor Clive Woodbridge (Chair) 
Councillor Bernice Froud (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Rob Geleit 
Councillor Graham Jones 
 

Councillor Rachel King 
Councillor Bernie Muir 
Councillor Humphrey Reynolds 
Councillor Kim Spickett 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Chief Executive 
 
For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 
01372 732000 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds 
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the 
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital 
that you follow their instructions.   

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but 
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLU1GWtI_OsxUcyTb2u4WGNNV7n-MGYVaZ


 

Public information 

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to observe 
live using free YouTube software. 

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda. A limited number 
of seats will be available on a first-come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish 
to observe the meeting from the public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of 
the meeting. A member of staff will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s 
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad, 
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this 
Committee, please email us at democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk. 

 

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

There are matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential or 
exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of the below items or should the Chair 
agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee may wish to resolve to 
exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted. 

 

Questions and statements from the Public 

Questions and statements from the public are not permitted at this Special meeting of the Committee. 
Annex 4.2 of the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework sets out which Ordinary meetings 
of Committees are able to receive public questions and statements, and the procedure for doing so. 

 

Filming and recording of meetings 

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council 
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the 
Council’s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 
 
Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed.

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking%20.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other 

registrable or non-registrable interests from Members in respect of any item to 
be considered at the meeting. 
 

2. LEISURE CENTRE CONTRACT  (Pages 5 - 34) 
 
 This report details the outcome of the procurement exercise which has taken 

place to find an operator for the Rainbow Leisure Centre for the next 10 years. 
The contract with the current operator, Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) expires 
at the end of September 2025, without an option to extend. An invitation to 
tender was published last year to secure an operator for the next contract 
period. The procurement exercise has finished, and this report makes a 
recommendation to the Committee, in accordance with our Contract Standing 
Orders, for the award of contract to the Preferred Supplier. 
 

3. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  (Pages 35 - 36) 
 
 Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Committee 

may pass a resolution to exclude the public from the Meeting on the grounds 
that the business involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that 
pursuant to paragraph 10 of Part 2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 

PREFERRED SUPPLIER OF LEISURE SERVICES AT THE RAINBOW 
LEISURE CENTRE 

 

Head of Service: Andrew Bircher, Assistant Director of 
Corporate Services 

Report Authors Assistant Director of Corporate Services and 
Corporate Governance and Strategy Manager 

Wards affected: (All Wards); 

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No 

If yes, reason urgent decision 
required: 

N/A 

Appendices (attached):  Appendix 1 – (Exempt Paper)  

Appendix 2 – Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Summary 

This report details the outcome of the procurement exercise which has taken place to 
find an operator for the Rainbow Leisure Centre for the next 10 years. The contract with 
the current operator, Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) expires at the end of September 
2025, without an option to extend. An invitation to tender was published last year to 
secure an operator for the next contract period. The procurement exercise has finished, 
and this report makes a recommendation to the Committee, in accordance with our 
Contract Standing Orders, for the award of contract to the Preferred Supplier. 

 

 

Recommendation (s) 

The Committee is asked to: 

(1) Approve the proposal to appoint the Preferred Supplier for the delivery of 
leisure services at the Rainbow Leisure Centre (Option A), as identified 
through the procurement process and in accordance with the Council’s 
Contract Standing Orders. 

(2) Approve the award of the contract to the second placed bidder, should the 
contract be unable to be finalised with the Preferred Supplier; and if the same 
should happen with the second placed bidder, the contract awarded to the 
third placed bidder. 

(3) Nominate and authorise the Assistant Director of Corporate Services, in 
consultation with the Director of Corporate Services and Head of Legal 
Services to take all necessary steps to bring into effect the recommendations 
resolved by this Committee.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
 

1 Reason for Recommendation 

1.1 Under the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, there is a requirement that 
any Threshold 4 contracts - the award of the contract for the Leisure 
Centre is a Threshold 4 contract - must be approved by the relevant 
committee before the contract can be awarded. 

1.2 The terms of reference for the Community and Wellbeing Committee 
cover the provision of leisure services, and so approval is required of 
Community and Wellbeing Committee. However, as the financial impact of 
the contract on the finances of the council is significant, approval of the 
contract award is also sought from Strategy and Resources Committee, 
as their terms of reference cover the council’s budget. 

1.3 The recommendation above reflects the outcome of the procurement 
process that has been followed over the course of the past year. 

1.4 Approving the recommendation will ensure there is a continuity of high-
quality leisure, health and wellbeing services delivered by the Rainbow 
Leisure Centre (the ‘Centre’), and that it remains a financially sustainable 
council-owned facility. 

1.5 In relation to Recommendation 2, this has been included in the unlikely 
circumstance that the council cannot proceed with the Preferred Supplier. 

1.6 Please note that Appendix 1 has been categorised as an Exempt Paper 
as it contains commercially sensitive information relating to the preferred 
bid, which in order to uphold and protect the commercial interests of this 
council, cannot be shared in the public domain.  

2 Background 

2.1 The council owns one leisure centre in the Borough. The facilities at the 
Centre include swimming pools, sports hall, fitness suite, exercise / dance 
studios, soft play, seniors’ room, and spa.  

2.2 Since the Centre was rebuilt and opened in 2003, it has been operated by 
a third-party leisure operator, Greenwich Lesure Limited (GLL), trading 
under the name ‘Better’. 

2.3 The existing contract with GLL was for a period of 15 years with an option 
to extend for a further 7 years and 6 months. Having exercised the 
extension, the contract is due to expire at the end of September 2025 with 
no further option to extend. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
2.4 It was agreed in the council’s Annual Plan 2024/25 that officers would 

progress the re-tendering of the Centre contract, and funding was 
allocated to procure a specialist leisure consultant. Throught the process, 
the Chairs of the Community and Wellbeing and Strategy and Resources 
committees have been briefed. 

2.5 The first step in progressing the re-tendering of the contract was to 
appoint a leisure consultant, FMG Consulting Ltd., to support officers with 
the procurement. As the council does not have dedicated in-house leisure 
operation or industry expertise, consultants were necessary to ensure the 
council was best placed to receive competitive tenders. For the same 
reason, specialist legal solicitors, Freeths, were also appointed, and our 
partner, the Shared Procurement Service, has also been used with this 
procurement. 

3 Our approach to the procurement 

3.1 The council has followed a clear, compliant, transparent and competitive 
two-stage procurement process (competitive procedure with negotiation) 
in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as the 
procurement exercise began before the government’s implementation of 
the Procurement Act 2023), and the council’s Contract Standing Orders.  

3.2 Within the procurement documentation shared with potential bidders for 
the Centre contract, the council put forward the following priority 
outcomes: 

 High quality services that meet and exceed customer expectations. 

 Delivering a financially and environmentally sustainable and well-
maintained leisure facility. 

 Improved health and wellbeing of the community, through 
increased opportunities to participate in sport and physical activity, 
from beginner to elite level. 

 Improved access to facilities, activities and opportunities for 
targeted groups that participate less in sport and physical activity. 

 Providing wider social value through strong and positive 
engagement with partners. 

3.3 The existing contract reflects its time, with respect to the primary focus 
being placed on the operation of the facility. The current approach through 
this procurement has been to seek an operator who will be able to provide 
a much more holistic offering to the community, namely by providing a 
robust active communities programme, which will involve delivering 
services outside of the Centre itself, and which addresses the council’s 
health and wellbeing priorities for the Borough. The approach has also 
sought to ensure that a balanced programme of activities is provided 
within the Centre, and an appropriate range of concessionary rates are on 
offer to customers. In addition, the new Centre contract is based on the 
latest template version produced by Sport England.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
3.4 The council has been very satisfied with the way the Centre has been 

operated over the past 22 years, and consider it a key community facility. 
This includes the operation through some very difficult times, such as 
Covid.  

3.5 Overall, the Centre is in good condition and receives high satisfaction 
levels from its users. However, as the building is now over 20 years old, 
fresh investment in the facility would ensure it continues to perform well 
into the future and remains a sustainable council owned venue. 

3.6 The council does not have an in-house leisure team or have officers with 
the level of expertise required to operate a leisure facility. Hence, 
partnering with a specialist external provider who can operate the Centre 
is the council’s only option, apart from closing the Centre after September 
2025.  

4  The Procurement Timetable: 

4.1 The process so far, and onward: 

Stage / Activity Target Date 

Market Interest Day  22nd October 
2024 

Issue Find A Tender Contract Notice 15th November 
2024 

Deadline for Selection Questionnaire (SQ) and Initial Tender 
clarification questions 

24th January 
2025 

Deadline for SQ and Initial Tender submission  7th February 
2025 

Evaluation of Initial Tenders 10th February – 
14th March 2025 

Negotiation Meetings with bidders 17th March – 11th 
April 2025 

Bidders invited to submit Final Tenders  11th April 2025 

Deadline for Final Tender clarification questions 25th April 2025 

Deadline for Final Tender submission Midday 9th May 
2025 

Evaluation of Final Tenders 9th May – 21st 
May 2025 

Council governance processes 22nd May – 17th 
June 2025 

Award notice and standstill period 18th June – 28th 
June 2025 

Contract finalisation, signature and mobilisation period 30th June – 30th 
September 2025 

Contract start date  1st October 
2025  

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
4.2 To keep the members of the Community and Wellbeing and Strategy and 

Resources committees updated on the progress of the procurement, two 
briefing sessions have been held (31st July 2024 and 25th March 2025). 
Furthermore, updates on the progress of the procurement have also 
featured within the council’s corporate performance reports, and given at 
the monthly Community and Wellbeing Committee and Strategy and 
Resources Committee Chairs’ meetings 

4.3 Initial Tender Submission 

4.4 Following the publication of the tender opportunity on the council's 
website, 4 bids were received, all of which had passed the Selection 
Questionnaire, which is designed to ensure that any potential operator 
has the professionalism, qualifications, policies and credentials to deliver 
the contractual requirements on behalf of the council. 

4.5 The Invitation to Submit Initial Tender (ISIT) document clearly sets out the 
council’s priority outcomes for the Centre contract and partnership, and 
the basis on which bidders should develop their initial tenders. The 
council’s base bid (preferred position) required bidders to complete quality 
responses to predetermined questions around areas such as active 
communities, activity programmes, investment proposals, customer 
services, sustainability, facilities management, and pricing. The base bid 
was comprised of a 10-year contract with the opportunity to extend for a 
further 5 years. It was also stated that the operator would be responsible 
for all elements involved in the day to day running of the Centre, including 
providing equipment and maintenance, excluding items related to the 
structure of the building, which the council will be responsible for. 

4.6 Negotiation Meetings 

4.7 After the officer evaluation panel had reviewed the initial tenders, 3 
bidders were invited to attend negotiation meetings. 1 bidder did not 
progress to this stage as they couldn’t reach the council’s expectations 
regarding the management fee that would be paid by the operator to the 
council. Bidders were allowed to vary, on an annual basis, the 
management fee they would pay the council (i.e. profile the fee), so long 
as it did not fall below a minimum of £400,000 per annum for any year of 
the contract period, which approximately reflects the council’s current 
management fee payment from the existing operator. 

4.8 The aim of the negotiation meetings was to clarify and negotiate around 
areas of their tender submissions. Each bidder was given an equal 
opportunity to present and clarify areas of their quality method statements, 
information in the pricing schedule, and the draft contract presented in the 
tender documentation. Information gathered from these sessions, 
combined with the initial tender documents, helped the evaluation panel to 
determine the basis on which the bids would be evaluated at the Invitation 
to Submit Final Tender (ISFT) stage. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
4.9 Final Tender Stage 

4.10 Following the dialogue meetings and a review of all the financial 
information generated at ISIT stage, the council set the basis on which it 
would evaluate the final tenders. The final position was closely aligned to 
the base bid position with the exception of increasing the page limits for 
the quality question responses. The council’s core requirements are set 
out in the table below: 

Core Requirements 

 10 Year Contract with the option for the Council to extend this by up to 5 
years. 

 Management of facilities and services in scope in accordance with the 
Services Specification.  

 Delivery of an Active Communities Programme. 

 Shared lifecycle replacement responsibility in accordance with the Services 
Specification.  

 A risk share approach on utilities tariff increases.  

 The Council will remain responsible for insuring the buildings including the 
payment for this. 

 The Operator will be required through modern ICT, to accurately measure 
exercise participation in the Borough. This information will subsequently be 
used by the Operator to raise participation levels for all residents and target 
groups and localities as set out in the Services Specification. 

 A positive variable annual management fee payment from the Operator 
(which must be greater than £400,000 in each contract year). 

4.11 The council received 3 final bids. The evaluation panel individually scored 
each quality question response and then met to agree a moderated score 
for each question. The Shared Procurement Service then combined the 
overall moderated quality score for each bidder with their pricing 
submission to arrive at the Most Economically Advantageous Tender 
(MEAT). The final scores for each bidder are shown in the exempt 
appendix (Appendix 1): if the contract award is approved these scores can 
be made public. 

4.12 Members should note that following this meeting, should 
Recommendation 1 be approved, a ‘standstill’ period will begin whereby 
the contract award can be challenged. Therefore, Members should not 
divulge any confidential information related to this report until the standstill 
period has finished. When appropriate the council will issue a press 
release. 

5 Closing the existing contract 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
5.1 Whilst this report seeks approval to award a new contract for the 

operation of the Centre going forward, there is the matter of closing down 
the existing contract to ensure a good handover, irrespective of whether 
that is to the same operator or not.   

5.2 To inform the procurement process and ensure proper closure of the 
existing contract, the council commissioned a stock condition report, 
which covered work to be completed under the current contract, and 
future works to be completed by the new operator. The existing operator 
and all bidders have reviewed the report, and works to be completed 
before the end of the current contract have been agreed with the existing 
operator. Council officers regularly check-in with the existing operator to 
ensure these works remain on-track. 

6 Options 

6.1 Option A: That the committee approves the proposal to appoint the 
Preferred Supplier for the delivery of leisure services at the Centre, as 
identified through the procurement process and in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Standing Orders.  

 (Recommended) 

6.2 Risks - See Appendix 1 (Exempt Paper). 

6.3 Opportunities 

6.4 There are many opportunities if Option A were to be approved, in terms of: 
continued revenue to the council through the management fee paid by the 
operator; investment in the Centre ensuring it remains a sustainable 
facility which can deliver enhanced services to residents, including an 
active communities programme that supports the council’s health and 
wellbeing strategy.  

6.5 Option B. That the committee does not approve the Preferred Supplier 
and decides to close the Centre from 1st October 2025, as there is not a 
legal option to extend with the current operator and the council does not 
have the resources to operate the Centre in-house.  

 (Not recommended) 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
6.6 Risks: Option B could lead to a significant worsening of the council’s 

financial position, through the loss of its management fee for the Centre 
and costs associated with decommissioning and maintaining the site; 
reduction in the provision of health and wellbeing services in the Borough, 
hence negatively impacting the delivery of the council’s health and 
wellbeing objectives; and reputational risks. There are minimal short-term 
mitigations that the council could put in place that would have a significant 
impact on lowering these risks, e.g. alternative funding sources that would 
cover the management fee paid to the council, and alternative council 
delivery mechanisms for similar health and wellbeing activities in the 
Borough. 

6.7 Opportunities: One opportunity with Option B is that the council could 
consider alternative uses for the site, however this would require 
substantial financial investment and would be a long-term project with an 
uncertain outcome (at present). 

7 Risk Assessment 

7.1 The main risks associated with this report are presented in Appendix 1 
(Exempt Paper) and the section above. 

Legal or other duties 

7.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 

7.2.1 Please see Appendix 2 for the Equality Impact Assessment. In brief, 
no negative impacts on the protected characteristics are foreseen 
as a result of this procurement exercise, as the contract seeks to 
positively support certain groups. In some cases, fees for certain 
concessionary memberships may increase slightly but this is not 
considered to have a negative impact overall. 

7.3 Crime & Disorder 

7.3.1 The implementation of an active communities programme and 
participation in health and leisure activities can have an influence 
on crime and disorder. 

7.4 Safeguarding 

7.4.1 The operator of the Centre will take all necessary steps to ensure 
safeguarding requirements are in place. 

7.5 Dependencies 

7.5.1 If the committee approves Option A, then the council will be 
dependent on the preferred bidder to operate the Centre. 

7.6 Other 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
7.6.1 None. 

8 Financial Implications 

8.1 The Council’s agreed 2025/26 budget includes an income budget of 
£381,000 for an annual management fee from the Rainbow Leisure 
Centre operator. All three bidders have submitted tenders which provide 
an annual management fee that exceed this budgeted income. 

8.2 Awarding the contract to the preferred bidder (or the second or third), will 
assure the Council is able to recover sufficient income to meet the 
budgetary requirement detailed in paragraph 8.1. If the contract is not 
awarded, the consequence will be under-recovery of income resulting in 
an adverse budgetary position for 2025/26 and future years. 

8.3 Section 151 Officer’s comments: There are both direct revenue and 
potential capital financial implications arising from the Leisure contract. 
The council has ensured that the new contract does not exert financial 
pressure on current and future budgets. Option A achieves financial 
savings and/or cost avoidance for the council which I support as the 
section 151 officer. 

9 Legal Implications 

9.1 The comprehensive form of Service Contract proposed is closely in line 
with the Standard Template Document produced by Sport England with 
amendments agreed during the selection process between the Preferred 
Provider and our external legal advisers, Freeths LLP. This accounts for 
such things as the Operator’s particular corporate structure, the way any 
future pandemic would be handled in terms of relief from obligations, and 
a contractual requirement to perform in accordance with the detailed 
specification provided by the Authority or to face financial penalties or (in 
extreme cases) potential contract termination. The Contract incorporates 
provisions giving the Operator day-to-day control and responsibility for the 
operation and maintenance of all leisure facilities to be operated by them 
and to fully insure their operations. 

9.2 Legal Officer’s comments: As noted above, specialist legal advice has 
been provided throughout this project by our external legal advisors and 
they have reviewed this report in advance of its publication.  

10 Policies, Plans & Partnerships 

10.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 
Green and Vibrant, Safe and Well, Effective Council. 

10.2 Service Plans: The matter is included within the current Service Delivery 
Plan. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
17th June 2025  

 
10.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: The council’s 

Sustainability Officer was part of the tender evaluation panel and therefore 
has contributed to this procurement exercise. 

10.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: No direct 
implications. 

10.5 Partnerships: The operator of the Centre is a key strategic partner of the 
council. The council will continue to conduct a robust contract 
management process regarding this contract and will update the process 
to reflect the new contract (inc. its performance management clauses). 

10.6 Local Government Reorganisation Implications: This contract will be 
transferred over to a new authority following its vesting day. The contract 
is for a single leisure centre which will create a positive return for the 
council, and therefore it should not pose any high risks to any future 
council. 

11 Background papers 

11.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 

Previous reports: 

 None. 

Other papers: 

 Epsom & Ewell Borough Council (2024) Annual Plan 2024-2025, 
Strategy & Resources Committee, 25th January. Online available: 
Epsom and Ewell Democracy [last accessed 16/05/2025]. 

 Epsom & Ewell Borough Council (2024/25) Performance and Risk 
Report (multiple). Audit & Scrutiny Committee (September 2024 – 
July 2025 meetings). Online available: Epsom and Ewell Democracy. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1510
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=157


Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 

Rainbow Leisure Centre Contract 2025 
 

 

Stage 1 EIA tracking 
 

 
Title of EIA 
 

 
Rainbow Leisure Centre Contract 2025 

 
Lead Officers 
 

Assistant Director of Corporate Services, Corporate Governance and Strategy Manager 
 

 
Division 
 

 
Policy and Corporate Resources 

 
Diversity, Equity & 
Inclusion Group -  
Review Date  
 
 

 
20th May 2025 

 
Publication Date 
 
(if applicable) 
 

17th June 2025 

 
EIA Review Date 
 
(if applicable) 
 

N/A – This EIA is for a fixed term contract which will be subject to contract management by the council. 

  

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

2 
 

 

Stage 2 Details of service, policy or function to be assessed and the potential impact on people with a   
                   protected characteristic.            
                    
 

Provide an overview of the policy, 
service or other function being 
introduced or reviewed. 
 
Please include the aim or purpose of 
the policy, service or function etc., any 
context, changes proposed and the 
desired outcome.  You will need to 
start to think about the equality 
implications and whether there is 
potential for impact on residents, 
service users and staff (as applicable) 
with one or more of the protected 
characteristics. 
 

This EIA relates to a report that seeks approval from two of the council’s committees to award a contract to a 
leisure operator to run the Rainbow Leisure Centre (the Centre), which the council owns. The options for the 
committee’s consideration are: A) to award a contract to the preferred supplier, who has been identified through 
a compliant and systematic procurement process, to operate the Centre for 10 years (with the possibility to 
extend for a further 5 years); or B) to not award the contract and effectively close the Centre in October 2025. 
 
The aim of the leisure contract is to ensure that the Centre provides high-quality leisure, health and wellbeing 
services in the Borough. It must also be commercially viable, in order for the Centre to be financially sustainable 
over the next 10 to 15 years.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

3 
 

 

Stage 3 Relevant information, data, consultation and engagement activities 
 

 
List all data (including source) and 
other information relevant to the full 
equality impact assessment 
 
 
 
 
 

 Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2025-2028 

 Community Development Manager 

 Community and Wellbeing Committee and Strategy and Resources Committee members briefing 
sessions. 

 Leisure consultant’s expert advice. 

 Legal consultant’s expert advice. 

 Tender documentation e.g. priority outcomes, service specification and draft leisure contract. 

 Leisure operators’ bid submissions. 

 
Specify all engagement activities 
undertaken 
 
 
 
 
 

 Site visits. 

 Community and Wellbeing Committee and Strategy and Resources Committee members briefing 
sessions. 

 Review of borough demographics and wider determinants of health (desktop by bidders and through 
review of the draft Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2025-2028). 

 

  

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=214&MId=1637&Ver=4


 

4 
 

 

Stage 4 Impact on residents, service users and staff with protected characteristics 
 

 
Undertake a full analysis which details all positive and negative impact arising from the policy, service or other function.  If there will be no impact, make 
this clear by completing the relevant box. Please ensure that you evidence your conclusions with reference to the appropriate source. 
 

 
Protected 

Characteristic 
Potential Positive Impact Potential Negative Impact No Impact 

Age 

 Applicable concessionary scheme in 
place. 

 Dedicated spaces/activities available in 
the Centre. 

 Active Communities programme. 

  

Disability 

 Applicable concessionary scheme in 
place. 

 Dedicated activities available in the 
Centre. 

 Active Communities programme. 

  

Gender 
Reassignment 

 

 

 Neutral: there are no proposals 
that would cause a positive / 
negative impact on the 
protected characteristic that 
can be foreseen at this stage 
of the procurement process. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

 

 Dedicated activities available in the 
Centre. 

 

  

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

5 
 

Race 

 Active Communities programme.   

Religion and 
Belief 

 Active Communities programme.   

Sex 

 

 Dedicated activities available in the 
Centre. 

 Active Communities programme. 

 

  

Sexual 
Orientation 

 

 

 

 Neutral: there are no proposals 
that would cause a positive / 
negative impact on the 
protected characteristic that 
can be foreseen at this stage 
of the procurement process. 

Marriage and 
Civil 

Partnerships 

 

 

 

 

 Neutral: there are no proposals 
that would cause a positive / 
negative impact on the 
protected characteristic that 
can be foreseen at this stage 
of the procurement process. 

 

Stage 5 Decision 
 

 
Specify the full details of your 
decision.   
 
Include any changes made to the 
proposal, steps taken to eliminate or 

There is no reason to believe this procurement exercise will create any negative impacts on a person’s protected 
characteristics. To the contrary it is expected that having a high-performing leisure operator running the Centre 
according to the principles and requirements set out in the tender documentation, bid submissions and contract, 
that potentially positive impacts could be realised through this procurement exercise. 
 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

6 
 

minimise any negative impact(s), any 
additional mechanisms put in place to 
meet the needs of particular groups or 
to help foster good relations etc. 
 

The aim of the exercise is to ensure high-quality leisure, health and wellbeing services are provided by the 
Centre. As part of the procurement process bidders for the contract have been requested to provide detailed 
statements on their planned Active Communities programme (e.g. outreach activities that meet the needs of the 
Borough, which are reflective of our Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2025-2028); programmes offered within the 
Centre such as swimming classes and activities (to ensure there is an inclusive range on offer); and pricing (to 
ensure there is an appropriate concessionary scheme that meets the needs of the Borough). Although the 
concessionary pricing scheme may change as a result of this procurement exercise, e.g. some prices may rise 
and others fall, officers have reviewed this element fully and are content that overall, the concessions offered by 
the bidders will deliver a net benefit to the Borough. Overall, the successful bidder will have signed up to 
positively contribute to the council’s health and wellbeing goals (set out in the Strategy). 
 
Compared to the current contractual arrangements, the new contract has been significantly updated and brought 
into line with modern standards. In addition, to the best of officers’ knowledge, who were not present during the 
original procurement, more focus has also been placed on the Active Communities programme, including 
delivering activities outside of the Centre building itself. 
 
Primarily the council has referred to the controls below to ensure equality implications have been incorporated 
into the procurement process. Further, please note that the full details of the bids submitted for the contract 
cannot be publicly consulted on due to their commercial confidentiality. 
 
Equality controls incorporated into the procurement process: 

 Bidders required to subscribe to the council’s equality objectives within the procurement documentation 
including the services specification documentation (including its Health & Wellbeing Strategy). This 
includes post-contract award reporting on these elements as part of the contract management 
arrangements. 

 Bidders required to provide detailed and evidence-based statements on 4 quality questions which relate 
to equalities, such as active communities, programme development, pricing, and social and economic 
value. 

 Compliant procurement process followed by the council to ensure the final bids received are from 
credible organisations. 

 Two Member briefing sessions held to gather feedback on the procurement strategy. 

 Expert consultants used for leisure operational and industry expertise, legal services, and procurement 
services. 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

7 
 

 
 

 

Stage 6 EIA – Action Plan 
 
 

Please specify any action that will be taken to support implementation of your decision 
 

 
Issue Identified 

 

 
Action required 

 
Implementation Date 

 
Responsible Officer 

Ensure effective contract 
management is in place for the new 
contract, which will directly address 
equalities. 
 
 

Contract management processes 
implemented. 

1st October 2025 Corporate Governance and Strategy 
Manager 

 
 
 

   

 
 
 

   

 

Stage 7 EIA Sign Off 
 

EIA needs to be signed off by Head of Service.  

If an EIA is going to be submitted with a proposal to a committee/corporate project board for decision making, the EIA needs to be approved by 
Head of Service and Strategic Management Team first.  

 
Head of Service: Assistant Director of Corporate Services 
 
 

 
Date: 22 May 2025 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



 

8 
 

 
Strategic Leadership Team: 
(where applicable) 
 
 

 
Date: 29th May 2025 

 
Name of Committee: Strategy and Resources Committee; Community and 
Wellbeing Committee 
(where applicable) 
 

 
Date: 17th June 2025 (see each committee’s papers for this date). 

 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 2
A

ppendix 2



Community and Wellbeing Committee  
17 June 2025  

 

 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Committee may pass 
a resolution to exclude the public from the Meeting on the grounds that the business 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that pursuant to paragraph 10 of Part 
2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
The following documents are included on the agenda and have not been published as 
they contain exempt information: 
 

Item 2: Leisure Centre Contract – Appendix 1 

This Appendix deals with information relating to the financial or business affairs of the 
Committee and third parties.  
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36


	Agenda
	2 Leisure Centre Contract
	Appendix 1 - EXEMPT PAPER
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment

	3 Exclusion of Press and Public

